
          

 

 

TWO LAKES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

MAY 17, 2023 
10:15 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 
Miami, FL 33193 

786.313.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



   
 AGENDA 

TWO LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Lennar Homes 

5505 Blue Lagoon Drive 
Miami, Florida 33126 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
May 17, 2023 

10:15 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication...........................................................................................................................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum  

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Staff Report: As Required 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
     Proposed Budget………………………………………………………………………………...Page 5 

2. Consider Rate Adjustment – Alvarez Engineers………………………………………………...Page 13 

3. Consider Rate Adjustment – Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.………………...Page 15 

I. Administrative & Operational Matters 

J. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Miscellaneous Notices 

Published in Miami Daily Business Review on May 9, 2023 

Location 
Miami-Dade County, Florida 
Notice Text 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL BOARD 
MEETING OF THE 
TWO LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Two Lakes Community Development 
District (the "District") will hold a Special Board Meeting (the "Meeting") 
of its Board of Supervisors (the "Board") on May 17, 2023, at 10:15 a.m.. 
at the Lennar Homes, LLC located at 5505 Blue Lagoon Drive, Miami, 
Florida 33126. The purpose of the Special Board Meeting is for the 
Board to discuss the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget and any 
other business that may lawfully and properly come before it. 
A copy of the agenda for the Meeting may be obtained at the offices of 
the District Manager, c/o Special District Services, Inc., at (561) 630-4922 
or asilva@sdsinc.org (the "District Manager's Office") during normal 
business hours. The Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for special districts. The 
Meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified on 
the record at the Meeting. 
Any person requiring special accommodations in order to access and 
participate in the Meeting because of a disability or physical impairment 
should contact the District Manager's Office at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the Meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, 
please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-
8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District 
Manager's Office. 
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board 
with respect to any matter considered at the Meeting is advised that 
person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is 
to be based. 
District Manager 
TWO LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
www.twolakescdd.org 
5/9 23-09/0000660946M 

  Page 1



Page 1 of 3 
 

TWO LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 16, 2022 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Armando Silva called the November 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Two 
Lakes Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 10:24 a.m. in the Lennar Homes, 
LLC Meeting Room located at 5505 Blue Lagoon Drive, Miami, FL 33126. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Miami Daily Business Review on October 10, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. SEAT ELECTED BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Silva seated and welcomed the newly elected Board Members: Raisa Krause, Vanessa Perez and 
Carmen Orozco. 
 
D. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE & REVIEW BOARD MEMBER 
RESPONSIBILITIES & DUTIES 
 
Mr. Silva, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to the elected Board 
Members and briefly reviewed the responsibilities and duties of a Board Member with emphasis on 
Government in the Sunshine, Financial Disclosure requirements and Public Records Law. 
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Silva determined that the attendance of the following Board Members constituted a quorum and 
it was in order to proceed with the meeting: Teresa Baluja, Vanessa Perez and Carmen Orozco 
 
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Armando Silva of Special District Services, Inc.; 
District Counsel Michael Pawelczyk of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A 
 
F. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. Silva indicated that due to the Final Landowners’ Election and new terms of office, it would be 
in order to re-elect the officers of the District.  A discussion ensued after which the following slate of 
officers was presented for election:  

 
             Chairperson – Teresa Baluja 
                        Vice Chairperson – Carmen Orozco 
                        Secretary/Treasurer – Armando Silva 
                        Assistant Secretaries – Raisa Krause, Vanessa Perez, Maria C. Herrera, Gloria Perez 
and Nancy Nguyen. 
 
 A discussion ensued after which; 

Page 2



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Baluja, seconded by Ms. Orozco and unanimously passed electing the 
District’s slate of officers, as stated above. 
 
G. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
H COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  September 21, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Silva presented the September 21, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes and asked if there were 
any comments and/or changes. There being no comments or changes, a motion was made by Ms. 
Baluja, seconded by Ms. Orozco and unanimously passed approving the September 21, 2022, Regular 
Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.   Staff Report, as Required 
 
There was no Staff Report at this time. 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 

1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended 
Budget 

 
Mr. Silva presented Resolution No. 2022-06, entitled: 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-06 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE TWO LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED 
FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 BUDGET (“AMENDED 
BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Silva read the title of the resolution into the record and explained the purpose of the document. 
He went on to state that there was a positive Operating Fund Balance at the end of Fiscal Year 
2021/2022 and noted that the District designated a carryover of this Fund Balance to balance the 
Fiscal Year 2021/2022 budget.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Baluja, seconded by Ms. Orozco and unanimously passed approving and 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-06, as presented, thereby approving the Amended Final 2021/2022 
Fiscal Year Budget. 
 

Page 3



Page 3 of 3 
 

L. AUDITOR SELECTION COMMITTEE 
 
Mr. Silva, District Manager (”DM”), announced for the record that he was recessing the Regular 
Board Meeting and simultaneously calling to order, at approximately 10:31 a.m.,. a meeting of the 
Audit Committee. The purpose of the Audit Committee meeting was to rank and recommend in 
order of preference no fewer than three (3) firms to perform the required auditing services for three 
(3) fiscal years commencing with the September 30, 2022 audit and to include a two (2) year renewal 
option.  The DM, previously appointed to the Audit Committee, provided to the Audit Committee 
members a recommendation to rank Grau & Associates, as number 1 and to proceed and engage Grau 
& Associates. Copies of the proposal from Grau & Associates was provided at the meeting.  A 
discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Baluja, seconded by Ms. Orozco and unanimously passed to waive the 
requirement to receive no fewer than three (3) firms and to rank the firm of Grau & Associates number 
1. 
 
There being no further Audit Committee business to conduct, the DM adjourned the Audit 
Committee meeting at approximately  10:32 a.m. and simultaneously reconvened the Regular Board 
Meeting so the that Board of Supervisors could consider and engage the firm recommended by the 
Audit Committee. A discussion ensued after which; 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Baluja, seconded by Ms. Orozco and unanimously passed to engage the 
auditing firm of Grau & Associates, the highest ranked and qualified auditing firm, to perform audits 
for the three (3) fiscal years 2021/2022, 2022/2023 and 2023/2024; and the fees for each fiscal year 
will be $5,700, $5,800 and $5,900 respectively; and to provide in the engagement a two (2) year 
renewal option for the fiscal years 2024/2025 audit and 2025/2026 audit; and authorizes the District 
Manager to negotiate a fee of not to exceed $6,000 for the 2024/2025 fiscal year audit and $6,100 for 
the 2025/2026 fiscal year audit.  

 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 1.  Staff Report, as Required 
 
There was no Staff Report at this time. 
 
N. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member or Staff closing comments. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Baluja, 
seconded by Ms. Orozco and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 
approximately 10:33 a.m. 

 
 
 

___________________________ _____________________________ 
   Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE TWO 
LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Two Lakes Community 
Development District (the “District”) is required by Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, to 
approve a Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE TWO LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 
            Section 2.      A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for July 20, 2022 at 9:45 a.m. in the 
3rd Floor Meeting Room at Lennar Homes, LLC located at 730 N.W. 107th Avenue, Suite 300, 
Miami, Florida 33172, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 17th day of May, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: TWO LAKES 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 5



 Two Lakes
 Community Development District

  Proposed Budget For
  Fiscal Year 2023/2024

     October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16


	Two Lakes Community Development District - May 17, 2023 Special Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Consider Rate Adjustment – Alvarez Engineers
	Consider Rate Adjustment – Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.

	Blank Page



